CITY OF ATKINS, IOWA
480 3RD AVENUE
ATKINS, |1A 52206

www.cityofatkins.org
319-446-7870

July 3, 2025
HONORABLE MAYOR PRO-TEM & CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS:

The next regular meeting of the Atkins City Council is scheduled for Tuesday, July 8, 2025,
at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, at City Hall. Please refer to the attached agenda for
the items discussed below.

ITEM #5A. RFP Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste. The City Council recently took
action to authorize a “notice of intent to not renew” its existing solid waste agreement with
Waste Management. The Agreement with Waste Management required not tess than 90
days written notice. Consequently, in the event of a change in haulers, it was critical to
begin the RFP process with sufficient lead time for a potential new hauler to acquire the
bins that would be necessary to serve the City.

The City has not previously bid out services for several years. Therefore, by going through
the RFP process, the City can better understand the current costs and market conditions to
achieve the greatest value for the City’s ratepayers.

The schedule is as follows:

- [ssuance of RFP On or before July 22, 2025
- Proposal Due Date August 26, 2025

- Open Proposals at City Hall August 27, 2025

- Selection of Preferred Contractor September, 2025

- Contract Awarded September, 2025

- Solid Waste & Recycling Services Begin January 1, 2026

- Yard Waste Collection Services Begin April 1, 2026

ITEM #5B. Designhation of signatories for City checks and banking. Although not expressly

required by lowa law, a prudent and widely accepted internal control practice is to require
multiple signatures on checks written by cities. When more than one person signs a check,
there is greater assurance that the claim is correct and that payment has been approved by
the governing body. The lowa League of Cities Handbook for City Clerks/Finance Officers
states that “Two people signing the warrants/checks adds a level of internal control, so the
City has an extra layer of protection against fraud and embezzlement.”




The City needs to update its Ordinance for approved signature authorization to include
Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem, City Administrator, and City Clerk. Current City ordinance provides
only for City Clerk/Finance Officer.

Additionally, the City needs to approve each person specifically in those aforementioned
capacities as designated signatories,

Smart Quote: “The best way to make a dream come true is to wake up.” - - Anna Wintour,
Media Executive

Scott L. Flory
City Administrator




PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following governing body will meet at the date,
time, and place herein set out. The tentative agenda for said meeting is as follows:

TENTATIVE AGENDA
ATKINS CITY COUNCIL
CITY HALL - 480 3*° AVENUE
TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2025
6:00 P.M.

1. Callto Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Pro-Tem Samantha
Petersen.

2. Approval of the Agenda by City Council.
3. Citizens’ Opportunity to address the Council on any items not on the agenda*:

- Inconformance with the lowa Open Meetings law, no action or
deliberation can occur on items presented during the Citizens’ Forum

- Please walk to the lectern and state your name and address so the Clerk
can properly enter it into the record and the subject of your discussion

- Speakers are encouraged to limit their comments to no more than three
{3) minutes

4, Unfinished Business:
5. New Business:

A. Request for Proposals for Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste Collection
Services:

- Review of request by Scott Flory, City Administrator

- Motion to approve Issuance of RFP for Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard
Waste Collection Services by City Council.

- Discussion and consideration of motion by City Council.

- Roll Call vote by Mayor Pro-Tem Petersen

B. Designation of City officials as signatories for banking & depository services:

- Review of request by Scott Flory, City Administrator

- Motion to approve Resolution #2025-07-01 “Approving by City Council.

- Discussion and consideration of motion by City Council.

- Roll Cail vote by Mayor Pro-tem Petersen

- Motion to approve Ordinance #232, “An Ordinance amending the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Atkins, lowa, 2005, by amending provisions



pertaining to Chapter 7 Fiscal Management (Accounting — Checks) (1%
Reading).

- Discussion and consideration of motion by City Council.
Roll Call vote by Mayor Pro-tem Petersen

6. City Administrator’s Report:
Update on response to RFP for City audit

7. Mayor’s Report:

8. Consent Agenda:

- Renewal of Class “C” Retail Alcchol License to Bobby T's, Inc., (d/b/a:
Bobby T’'s Bar & Grill) 96 Main Avenue

- Lucky Wife Wine Slushies (402 Main Avenue) Class “C” Retail Alcohol
License (5-day) August 6" - 11th

- Approval of the bills & claims as submitted

- Approval of the June 24™ Council meeting minutes

- Approve appointment of City Clerk Selection Committee (Council
Members Fisher and Dursky, City Administrator Flory)

- Approve Change Order #7 Fire Station Building Project for a deduction
(credit) of $6,200 for revising cast iron to PVC pipe

9. QOther Business:

10. Motion to Adjourn

NEXT REGULAR MEETING - JULY 22, 2025 at 6:00 P.M.

This notice is given pursuant to Chapter 21.4 (1} of the Code of lowa and of the local Rules
& Procedures of the Governing Body

*Written comments are welcome in advance of the meeting and may be received at the
office of the City Clerk in-person, or by email at: git org at Atkins City
Hall, 480 Third Avenue, Atkins, A 52206. Contact the City Cler<s ice If you plan to speak
before the Council on an agenda item and need any special assistance.

Note: Some members may participate by telephone, per Section 21.8 of the Code of lowa



CITY OF ATKINS

2025 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR THE COLLECTION OF RESIDENTIAL

SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING, & YARD WASTE

I INTRODUCTION

The City of Atkins is seeking proposals from qualified firms to provide solid waste and
recyclable collection services for single-family houses, condominiums, duplexes, tri-
plexes, four-plexes, and townhouses. Approximately 760 households will be served.
The City expects to initiate the new Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste services
contract on January 1, 2026. The initial contract will be for five years, with the city’s
option to renew it for one additional year.

In soliciting bids, the city seeks bids from waste haulers that can offer the following to
City residents:

"

2.

i

Provide weekly collection and disposal of solid waste (not less than
approximately 64-gallon bins) and

Provide bi-weekly single-stream recycling collection & disposal (not less than
64-gallon bins) at each residential unit

Provide weekly Yard Waste collection and disposal from the first full week of
April through the last full week of November each year Residents will obtain and
use proper bags and carts/bins for disposal of yard waste. Contractor will be
compensated per ton of material collected and delivered.

Provide collection of Christmas trees at the curbside from all residences
included in this agreement at a time specified by the City.

Bid rates shall include the cost for the initial purchase of solid waste bins.
Bins/lids should be color-coded and have attached lids.

Bid should provide for replacements of damaged or lost bins.

Collaborate with the City on an “Annual Spring Clean-Up Day”.

Provide garbage and recycling collection for all households 1 time per week; with
Wednesday as the preferred collection day.

Contractor may provide an alternate bid to:

Provide weekly collection and disposal of solid waste from a 95-gallon bin at
each residential unit.

Provide bi-weekly single-stream recycling collection and disposal from a 95-
gallon bin at each residential unit.

Alternate bid rates shall include the cost for the initial purchase of solid waste
bins. Bins should be color-coded and have attached lids.

Bid should provide for replacements of damaged or lost bins.



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

In addition to solid waste, recycling, & yard waste collection services for single-family
houses, condominiums, duplexes, and townhouses, the Contractor must provide
service, at no cost to City, to City operated locations, including: City Hall, Fire Station,
Public Library, Public Works Facility, Water Treatment Plant, Wastewater Treatment
Plant, and any other Municipal Building(s) premises to be built or leased by the City
during the term of this contract.

The City of Atkins utilizes the Benton County Landfill for trash, located at

All services must comply with local, county, state, and federal ordinances, laws, and
regulations.

“Recyclable” and “Recycling” means the following: newspapers, magazines,
corrugated cardboard, mixed paper, glass, aluminum cans, tin cans, plastic containers
marked with a recycling logos and number 1-5 and 7, and other items mutually agreed
upon as recyclable.

Interested bidders are to submit proposed Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste
collection and disposal fees per dwelling unit. Proposals shall be based on the current
dwelling unit count of 760.

Interested bidders are to submit proposed costs on a per-household, per tote, per bin,
per month basis. All households will be charged for collection of at least one garbage
tote and one recycling bin weekly regardless of their use. Refining the actual number of
households and the locations of solid waste and recyclable collection (curbside or
alley) will be determined by the City of Atkins in conjunction with the Contractor prior to
contract award. Once the Contractor is selected, a contract will be negotiated based
on a mutually agreed upon scope of services, which shall be subject to approval by the
City Council.

Responses to this RFP must be received by the City of Atkins according to the Proposal
Submission Requirements set forth in Section Il below.

ALTERNATE BID 1. CITY-WIDE BULK COLLECTION. Provide a price and description of
an “Annual Spring Clean-Up Day”. Provide a per household cost along with any volume
or other restrictions. Excluded or additional charge items.

ALTERNATE BID 2. INDIVIDUAL BULK PICK UP. Provide a price and description for
individual household by request bulk curb-side pick-up. Provide a breakdown by type
(furniture, electronics, appliance) if applicable.



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

ALTERNATE BID 3. TAGS FOR EXCESS GARBAGE. Provide a price and description for
individual household by request excess garage collection.

. SCOPE OF WORK
Following is the scope of services to be provided by the contractor:

1. The contractor shall be required to provide labor and equipment needed to collect
solid waste, recyclable, & yard waste materials from the curbside or housing unit on
weekdays between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. on the day of collection.
Collection shall not be provided on New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor
Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Collections normally occurring on the
holidays mentioned above will instead occur on the following weekday.

2. The City of Atkins requires that solid waste collection, single-stream recyclables
collection, & yard waste collection occur on the same day as it is more convenient
for residents.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall employ gualified and competent personnel to conduct the
collection service and operate the vehicles and render good, efficient, and
satisfactory collection, transportation, and disposal service as contemplated by the
City of Atkins, lowa. All the CONTRACTOR'S personnel shall act courteously {i.e.,
politely respond to residents, answer questions, handle containers in a controlled
manner, etc.). The CONTRACTOR agrees that no person shall be denied
employment due to protected status under the lowa Civil Rights Act.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall provide personnel working in the right-of-way with class |l
high visible outerwear, and the CONTRACTOR shall require personnel to wear the
visible outerwear when working in City right-of-way.

5. The Gontractor will maintain a customer service center open on weekdays between
the hours of 7:30 A.M. and 4:30 P.M., with the exception of holidays, to receive calls
from residents and city representatives.

6. The Contractor is required to pick up missed garbage or recyclables the same day if
reported before 2 P.M. and the following day if reported after 2 P.M.

7. The CONTRACTOR shall be required to deliver solid waste to the Benton County
Sanitary Landfill during hours of operation and recyclable materials to a facility
licensed for receiving and transferring recyclables and approved by the CITY.
Approved facilities shall be within a 50-mile radius of the City of Atkins, and
approval will be based on the value of materials or the disposal fees.

3



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

8. The CONTRACTOR shall provide an adequate number of vehicles to collect
residential solid waste and recyclables per the terms of this contract. The
CONTRACTOR shall have reserve equipment available at all times to ensure that the
normal collection service will not be interrupted in the event of equipment failure.
All vehicles shall be licensed in the State of lowa and shall operate in compliance
with all applicable state, federal, and municipal regulations.

9. Vehicles, containers, and equipment used to collect and transport solid waste and
recyclables shall be leakproof, durable, and easily cleanable construction. They
shall be constantly cleaned to prevent nuisances, pollution, or insect breeding and
maintained in good repair. All vehicles, containers, and equipment described above
will be kept in safe mechanical and operating condition. They shall not leak oil, fuel,
or hydraulic fluids and shall be equipped with proper and working muffler and
exhaust systems.

10. The CITY has the right to inspect any vehicles, containers, and equipment used for
solid waste and recyclable collection in the City of Atkins by the CONTRACTOR at
any time. If said equipment is considered in violation of any provision or language of
the Residential Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste Agreement, the CITY can
prohibit such equipment from operation until such equipment has been brought
into compliance with the contract provisions as determined by the CITY.

11.The CONTRACTOR and the CITY agree that the waste collection vehicles shall be
operated safely and prudently by employees with valid operator's licenses. To that
end, the CITY shall have the right, and the CONTRACTOR shall agree to cooperate
with regular inspections of the vehicles and their operation.

12. The CONTRACTOR shall pay all Benton County Sanitary Landfill fees associated
with residential solid waste collected by CONTRACTOR for residential units.

13. The CONTRACTOR shall pay all disposal fees associated with the residential
recyclables collected by CONTRACTOR for residential dwelling units.

14. The Contractor will be required to collect data to be used for solid waste and
recycling evaluation and submit it along with a monthly or quarterly invoice,
whichever is more convenient. Such data is anticipated to include, but not he
limited to, the following: the number of households; the number of setouts weekly,;
the amount of recyclable material collected (by weight); the amount of garbage
collected (by weight) and other similar data pertinent to evaluation.



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

il PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

Responses to this Request for Proposal must be received by hoon on Tuesday, August
26, 2025, at the City Hall, City of Atkins, |A, 480 3" Avenue, 52206. The proposals will be
opened at 10:00 A.M. on Wednesday, August 27, 2025, at the Atkins City Hall. All
responses must include a complete copy of all required submission materials.

General Requirements:

1. Name, address, telephone number of firm, emergency contact number available at
alltimes, and a contact person. Each proposal shall be signed by an official of the
company submitting the proposal.

2. Proposed cost per household per month for curbside/housing unit collection of
solid waste and commingled recyclables for the City of Atkins.

3. Adescription of how the service will be provided, including:

- Anagreementto pick up recyclables the same day as solid waste service.

- Adetailed description of past experience with similar types of operation
and references to be contacted for verification.

- Alist of all equipment to be used for collection service.

- Describe how equipment and labor will be utilized to accomplish
collection services in the defined time period.

- Adescription of procedures for residents to follow to contact the
Contractor for customer services and missed pickups. At a minimum, the
following should be addressed:

- Aphone number available from 7:30 A.M. until 4:30 P.M. on collection
days and method for handling after-hours calls, including an
emergency contact number available at all times.

- A procedure for collection of missed solid waste and recyclables.

- Availability of vehicles and personnel to handle missed pickups.

4. A statementthat all trucks and equipment will be maintained in good working
condition.

Performance bond and/or Letter of Credit, and Insurance Requirements:
1. ltwill be expected that the prevailing waste/recycling/yard waste hauter will be

required to either post a performance bond, or provide a letter of credit in the
amount of 10% of the projected annual value of the contract, and language will be



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

included within the contract that will define what will trigger liquidated damages if
not resolved, and will be drawn from the performance bond or letter of credit -
whichever is established.

Proof of insurance as stated below must be provided prior to the contract being
approved.

Maintain and carry adequate policies of insurance to cover all liabilities and
contingencies which may arise out of, and in pursuit of this Contract and to
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any such liabilities and contingencies.
This insurance must include the following features: coverage for all premises and
operations. The policy shall be endorsed to provide the aggregate per project
endorsement. The Contractor will include the City as an additional insured on all
polices, except Workers’ Compensation. Evidence of insurance shall be furnished
to the City by contractor in the following minimum limits, to with:

Commercial general liability insurance in the amount of:

A. $2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit (other than Products-Completed
Operations)

B. $2,000,000 Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit

C. $1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury Limit

D. $1,000,000 Each Occurrence Limit

E. $ 50,000 Fire Damage Limit

F. $§ 5,000 Medical Expense Limit

Commergial auto coverage insurance in the amounts of:

A. $1,000,000 Liability/Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury & Property Damage)
B. $2,000,000 Umbrella policy

C. $ 5,000 Auto Medical Payments (per scheduled units)

D. $1,000,000 Uninsured & Underinsured

Workers’ Compensation insurance in the amounts of:

A. $ 100,000 each accident. Bodily Injury by Accident
B. $ 500,000 policy limit. Bodily Injury by Disease
C. $ 100,000 sach employee. Bodily Injury by Disease

. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION The provider will be required to provide a waiver of
subrogation to the benefit of the City as it relates to Workers Compensation.




4.

7.

City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

INSURANCE CERTIFICATES. Each policy noted above shall be issued by an
insurance company authorized to write such insurance in the State of lowa and shall
reasonably be acceptable to the City. These insurance policies shall not be
cancelled without at least 30 days’ prior written notice to the City. A properly
executed Certificate of Insurance showing evidence of these insurance
requirements shall be delivered to the City prior to the commencement of this
contract.

GOVERNMENT IMMUNITY. The following clauses will be added to all liability
coverages:

- NONWAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. The company and insured
expressly agree and state that the purchase of this policy of insurance by
the insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity
available to the City of Atkins under Code of lowa Section 670.4 as it now
exists and as it may be amended from time to time.

- CLAIMS COVERAGE. The company and the insured further agree that this
policy of insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the
defense of governmental immunity under the lowa Code Section 670.4 as
it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time.

SECURITY REQUIREMENT. A bid bond of $10,000 is required at the time of bid
submittal and provided by a bone-fide underwriter. If a bid bond is not submitted at
the time of the bid submittal, the proposal will be rejected as non-responsive and
will not be considered. The City shall also surrender the bid bond to each bidder
that fails to be selected promptly after the City awards the bid to the prevailing
waste/recycling hauling contractor, unless a proposal has been deemed non-
responsive and is no longer considered, the City will promptly release the bid bond if
one was provided.

PROCEDURES

- During the proposal evaluation, the City reserves the right to request
additional written information to assist in the evaluation of proposals.

- Proposals and written responses to the City’s request for additional
information shall be signed by the Contractor (if an individual), by an
officer of the proposing Contractor, or by a desighated agent empowered
to bind the Contractor in a contract.

- Uponreceipt, the proposals shall become the property of the City of
Atkins for disposition or usage by the City of Atkins at its discretion.

7




City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

- 3 hard copies and 1 electronic copy of the proposals must be received by
12:00 P.M., Tuesday, August 26, 2025, Proposals can be mailed, or hand
delivered to the City Hall,480 3" Avenue, Atkins, |IA 52206. Proposals
should be clearly labeled “PROPOSAL FOR COLLECTION OF SOLID
WASTE AND RECYCLABLES” on the outside of the envelope. Aminimum
of a 5-year proposal is required that will include an option to renew for 1
additional year.

V1. SELECTION PROCESS
1. QUESTIONS. Questions regarding this Request for Proposal can be directed to:

Scott Flory
City Administrator
City of Atkins
480 3" Avenue
Atkins, I1A 52206
319.283.8206 (work cell)
sflory@cityofatkins.org

All gquestions and responses will be made in writing and distributed by the City of
Atkins to those firms on the Request for Proposal (RFP) mailing list as an
amendment to the RFP. Origin of questions will be held in confidence until after the
contract award.

2. SELECTION CRITERIA. Selection of a Contractor for contract negotiations will be
based upon:

- the qualifications and experience of the firm in performing simitar
activities; (30 points)

- ability to meet services within the time schedule shown below; (15
points)

- suitability of equipment and personnel to meet the collection needs; and
(15 points)

- service provider headquarters located closest to City of Atkins (10 points)

- the price proposed (30 points)

3. The City of Atkins anticipates selection will occur no later than September of 2025,
with a target date of September 9, 2025. All firms submitting proposals will be
notified in writing regarding the results of the selection process,



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

4. The City of Atkins reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or to waive any
irregularities in any proposal if judged to be in the best interest of the City of Atkins.
If a proposal does not satisfy the minimum requirements, as set forth in this RFP, as
determined by the City of Atkins, the proposal may be disqualified on the basis of
being nonresponsive and the bid proposal will be removed from further
consideration.

5. Each proposal will be reviewed by the City of Atkins and graded relative to the
evaluation criteria set forth in this RFP. The best qualified proposer will be that
which offers the best value to the City of Atkins on price and other factors
considered.

6. KEY PROPOSAL DATES. The City of Atkins expects the following time schedule to be
in effect in the selection of a Contractor for solid waste, recyclables, & yard waste
collection in the City of Atkins:

- Issuance of RFP July 22, 2025

- Proposal Due Date August 26, 2025
- Open Proposals at City Hall August 27, 2025
- Selection of Preferred Contractor September, 2025
- Contract Awarded September, 2025
- Solid Waste & Recycling Services Begin January 1, 2026
- Yard Waste Collection Services Begin April 1, 2026

7. During the Selection of Preferred Contractor phase, the City will review them
internally and may meet with individual haulers separately for both question and
answers and further clarification of their respective proposals. Once all proposals
have been thoroughly reviewed, the City Administrator will present their
recommendation to the City Council for their approval and formal action.

THIS RFP IS AN INVITATION FOR OFFERS ONLY AND DOES NOT ITSELF
CONSTITUTE AN OFFER. ANY CONTRACT ENTERED INTO AS A RESULT OF THIS
RFP SHALL BE SUBJECT TO FORMAL APPROVAL OF COUNCIL AS REQUIRED BY

CITY AND STATE CODE



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025
FORMI
COMPANY INFORMATION

Company Name

Address

Phone Numbers

Email

Authorized Company Representative

Title

References: Please provide on separate page(s) your collection references. For each
reference, please provide municipality, number of households per day, contract
structure between the proposer and the municipality(ies) or public agency being
serviced, type and frequency of service provided, etc.

Qualifications Questionnaire

Please describe the qualifications or expertise of your company in each of the
following categories:

General Management

Financial Stability and Strength

Household Waste and Recyclable Waste Collection Experience
Overview of Services to be Provided

Staff Resources Dedicated to the Contract, Including Training
Technology: Routing, Dispatch, and Contamination Monitoring

Authorized Signature

Date

10



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

Business Information

1. Describe the nature of your current business.

2. State the length of time you have been in business under your present name.

3. Within the last ten (10) years, has the Company submitting this Proposal, or any
facility or property owned or operated by your Company ever been the subject of
administrative or judicial action for alleged violation of the conditions of a permit
issued by a governmental entity; or alleged violations of environmental, zoning,
or public health laws or regulations?

LlYesO No

If s0, state the details and disposition.

4. If awarded this contract, will your Company be able to provide solid waste,
recyclable waste, and yard waste collection services by the Contract start date?

COYes I No

5. What is the transition plan required between the current contract operations and
the new Contract operations? For example, how will various collection functions
be routed, and how would proposed collection day changes occur?

6. Is your company currently under contract to provide solid waste collection and
disposal services for any other governmental, or quasi-governmental, entity{ies)

in the State of lowa? If so, identify the name of said entities and the date of the
initial contract and whether the contract has been renewed by the entity.

Yard Waste Collection

1. What is your experience with providing yard waste collection services?

2. What program efficiencies will be gained through one Contractor collecting solid
waste, recycling, and yard waste?

Spring Clean Up Day

1. What is your experience with providing services at cleanup day events?
2. What are your plans for servicing the City’s’ spring cleanup day?

11



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025
FORM I
EQUIPMENT AND LABOR DESCRIPTION

List proposed equipment and labor to be used by the contractor to accomplish the
collection.

A. Equipment:
1. Vehicle types(s) include:

- Make:

- Model:

- Overall capacity of each vehicle:

- Number of vehicles to be used:

- Vehicles available for missed collections:

2. Additional Equipment to be used:

B. Labor:

1. Personnel available for handling calls and missed pickups:

2. How will the missed pickups be handied:

12



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025
C. Reguirements: Please attach additional information as listed in General,
Insurance, and Security Requirements.

FORM I

PROPOSED COSTS

The undersigned proposes to furnish the collection of solid waste, commingled recyclable
material, & yard waste for the City of Atkins, lowa for the following sums:

A.

Collection Costs

. Weekly Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 64-gallon bins:

$ per household per week

. ALTERNATE BID Weekly Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 96-gallon bins:

$ per household perweek

. Weekly Yard Waste Collection {April through November)

$ per household per week

$ Yard Waste Price perton
. Tagfor additional bag(s):

$ per tag/bag

Proposed annualincrease to household rate for Years 2, 3, 4 & 5:

% peryear

Collection Schedule
1. Same Day Solid Waste, Recycling, & Yard Waste Collection? YES or NO
2. Collection on Wednesday? YES or NO

3. Ifresponded “NO”, which days?

13



City of Atkins
Solid Waste & Recycling RFP
July 2025

C. Bulk Rick-Up

1. Cost for City-wide Spring Clean-up Day $
(attach additional information}

2. Individual bulk pick up $

(attach additional information)

D, Additional Services:

(attach additional information)

Certification of Binding Signature

Instructions: Selected forms provided in this RFP are required to be completed and be
executed by an official authorized to bind the Proposal offer. All completed forms shall be
made a part of the Respondent’s proposal. Selected forms must be signed by the same
authorized person.

The undersigned Respondent further certifies that he/she has read the information
submitted by the Proposer and has personal knowledge that the information submitted is
true and correct.

(Name of Authorized Officer)

Of

(Title) (Proposer Firm Name)

(Date)
| swear that pricing shall be valid for a period of 120 days after submittal.
[ swear that | am authorized to execute all Proposal forms included in this Proposal
response to the RFP and to bind the company to these agreements; and swear that | have

read the information contained in this Proposal and that | have personal knowledge that it
is true and correct.

14



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-07-01

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DESIGNATING THE OFFICIAL SIGNATORIES OF THE
CITY OF ATKINS FOR BANKING AND DEPOSITORY SERVICES

WHEREAS, THE City of Atkins maintains bank accounts at the City’s approved
financial institutions for the disbursement of funds in order to conduct business of the City,
and

WHEREAS, the City Councilis responsible for designating authorized signatories
for checks drawn on the City’s bank accounts, and

WHEREAS, in the event that an authorized signatory of the City changes (elections,
illness, resignations, etc.), the City will notify the Depository Bank of the change and make
appropriate revisions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Atkins City Council that the following are
designated as the individuals authorized to sign the disbursements, on all fund accounts,
on behalf of the City of Atkins.

Scott Flory, City Administrator Bruce Visser, Mayor

Samantha Petersen, Mayor Pro-Tem

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any of the said named City officials are hereby
authorized to endorse all checks, drafts, notes and other items payable to or owned by the
City for deposit with the banking institution(s).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the above named City Officials are authorized and
empowered to execute such other agreements, including, but not limited to, special
depository agreements and arrangements regarding the manner, conditions, or purposes
for which funds, checks, or items of the City may be deposited, collected, or withdrawn
and to perform such other acts as they deem reasonably necessary to carry out the
provisions of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the authority hereby conferred upon the above-
named City Officials shall be and remain in full force and effect until written notice of any
amendment or revocation thereof shall have been delivered to and received by the
Financial Institution at each location where an account is maintained. Financial Institution



shall be indemnified and held harmless from any loss suffered or any liability incurred by it
in continuing to act in accordance with this Resolution. Any such notice shall not affect
any items in process at the time notice is given.

PASSED and APPROVED this 8" day of June, 2025.

Mayor Pro-Tem

Attest:

City Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. 232

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
ATKINS, IOWA, 2005, BY AMENDING PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO CHAPTER 7
FISCAL MANAGEMENT (ACCOUNTING - CHECKS)

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Atkins, Iowa:

SECTION 1. SECTION MODIFIED. Chapter 7, Section 7.07(3), of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Atkins, Towa, 2005, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof:

7.07(3) CHECKS. Two signatures are required on all City checks. Checks shall be
prenumbered and signed by any two of the following: Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem, City
Administrator, and City Clerk, following Council approval, except as provided by Subsection 5
hereof.

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, provision or part of this ordinance
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 3. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final
passage, approval and publication as provided by law, but not prior to the City utilizing its existing
check supply.

Passed and approved this day of , 2025,
Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk
I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance No. on the
day of , 2025.
City Clerk

1reading: Jjuly 8, 2025
2nd reading:
Final reading:



CHAPTER 7 FISCAL MANAGEMENT

2 Program Transfer. Any transfer of appropriation from one
program to another must be prepared, adopted and subject to protest in
the same manner as the original budget.

(IAC, 545-2.3 [384, 388])

8 Activity Transfer. Any transfer of appropriation from one activity
to another activity within a program must be approved by resolution of
the Council.

(IAC, 545-2.4 [384, 388])

4. Administrative Transfers. The finance officer shall have the
authority to adjust, by transfer or otherwise, the appropriations allocated
within a specific activity without prior Council approval.

(IAC, 545-2.4 [384, 388])

7.07 ACCOUNTING. The accounting records of the City shall consist of
not less than the following:

1. Books of Original Entry. There shall be established and
maintained books of original entry to provide a chronological record of
cash received and disbursed.

2 General Ledger. There shall be established and maintained a
general ledger controlling all cash transactions, budgetary accounts and
for recording unappropriated surpluses.

< Checks. Checks shall be prenumbered and signed by the Finance
Officer/City Clerk following Council approval, except as provided by
subsection 5 hereof.

4. Budget Accounts. There shall be established such individual
accounts to record receipts by source and expenditures by program and
activity as will provide adequate information and control for budgeting
purposes as planned and approved by the Council. Each individual
account shall be maintained within its proper fund and so kept that
receipts can be immediately and directly compared with revenue
estimates and expenditures can be related to the authorizing
appropriation. ~ No expenditure shall be posted except to the
appropriation for the function and purpose for which the expense was
incurred.

3. Immediate Payment Authorized. The Council may by resolution
authorize the Clerk to issue checks for immediate payment of amounts
due, which if not paid promptly would result in loss of discount, penalty
for late payment or additional interest cost. Any such payments made
shall be reported to the Council for review and approval with and in the
same manner as other claims at the next meeting following such

CODE OF ORDINANCES, ATKINS, [OWA
s 38 -



GARLING

CONSTRUCTION, INC.

General Contractors

1120 11th Street ® Belle Plaine, IA52208 @ Phone: (319) 444-3409 319-444-3409 @  Fax: (319) 444-2437 319-444-2437

COR#. | 0007
Date Monday, June 23, 2025
Project: Atkins Fire Station
Project #: 54259 cc: Superintendent
Owner credit from Mechanical to revise cast iron to PVC pipe
# Description Type Qty Rate Expense Amount MarkUp Cost
00007 | NEI Mechanical Subcontractor -6200.000 0.0000 | ($6,200.00)
Expense
PROPOSAL SUMMARY
Subcontractor Expense ($6,200.00)
Net Costs (56,200.00)
Proposal Total (56,200.00)

&5 PLEASE REVIEW AND SIGN BELOW FOR INCLUSION IN THE NEXT OWNER CHANGE ORDER &=,

Architect: x WW Solum Lang Architects Date: 06.25.25

Owner: X Date:

YRS Lt

PM: X Date: 6/23/2025

Michael J Svatosch, Project Manager

http://www.garlingconstruction.com



NEIA L)
MEC(C CAL

PLUMBING HEATING . ELECTRICAL

403 Mill Ave., Elgin, 1A 52141 Phone: 563-426-5144 Email: neiamechanical@alpinecom.net

June 6, 2025

Contractor:

Garling Construction
5607 4™ Street Ct SW
Cedar Rapids, 1A 52404

Project:

Atkins Fire Station
91 Railroad St
Atkins, TA 52206

SUBJECT: Possible cost savings / change order

To whom it may concern,

We are wondering if it would be allowable to use schedule 40 PVC for the above ground venting / drainage in lieu of the specified
cast iron.

Materials/Labor savings are below:

Materials : $(4,800)
Labor : $(1,400_
Total: $(6,200)

Respectfully,

S owy dooke

Doug Rocke

Business & Finance Director
neiamechanical@alpinecom.net

Northeast Iowa Mechanical Systems, L.L.C.
403 Mill Ave.

Elgin, IA 52141



CITY OF ATKINS CITY COUNCIL MEETING
REGULAR SESSION MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, June 24, 2025, at 6:00PM
City Hall Council Room, 480 Third Avenue, Atkins, lowa, 52206

The Atkins City Council met in regular session on Tuesday, June 24, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., in the
Community Room, at City Hall, with Mayor Bruce Visser presiding. Council members present:
Dursky, Bell (telephonically), Fisher, and Petersen. Absent Koehn, Also present: City
Administrator, Scott Flory,

The meeting was also live streamed on the City’s various social media platforms.
Fisher moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Dursky. Roll call: Passed Unanimously.

Mayor Visser announced that it was now the time and place for citizen comment. There were no
citizen comments,

Flory reviewed a proposal to make certain rehabilitation and maintenance improvements to the
old Water Treatment Plant Building (doors & windows, etc). He advised that this was an item
budgeted for FY 25 and that two quotes were received and the lowest cost proposal was
submitted by Done & Done (Cedar Rapids) in the amount of $22,087.74. He indicated the
project consists of replacing the two exterior entry doors, 3 windows, weatherizing the remaining
two windows, replacement of the overhead door, with an option for “oversizing” the door, roof
hatch repairs, and gutter and downspout installation. After discussion, Fisher made the motion to
approve the quote from Done & Done without the “oversizing” of the overhead door option,
seconded by Bell. Roll call: Passed Unanimously.

Flory reviewed a proposed policy pertaining to City Council Rules of Order & Procedure. He
advised that this has been on the Council’s “to-do” list for several years and that he modeled the
policy after a draft that outside legal counsel had prepared in March of 2022. After general
discussion, it was moved by Fisher, seconded by Dursky to approve Resolution #2025-06-05
“Approving City of Atkins, Iowa Rules of Procedure for Conduct of City Business”. Roll Call:
Passed Unanimously.

Flory reviewed a proposal to approve and authorize an Internal Advance for the 2014 Cardinal
Avenue Street Extension Project. He advised that this was a finding in the City’s annual audits
and that approval of the Resolution would authorize the transfer of $171,733 from the City’s
Tax-Increment Fund to the General Fund to reimburse for previous costs associated with that
Project, which had previously been certified for TIF collection but not transferred. Moved by
Petersen, seconded by Dursky to approve Resolution #2025-06-06 “Approving and authorizing
Repayment of Internal Advance for Cardinal Avenue Extension Project. Roll Call: Passed
Unanimously.

Flory reviewed Pay Application #5 for the Fire Station Building Improvement Project and gave a
project update. Dursky moved, seconded by Petersen to approve Pay Application #5 in the
amount of $298,917.50 to Garling Construction. Roll Call: Passed Unanimously.

Flory reviewed Resolution #2025-06-07 “Approving and authorizing Internal Advance for
Funding of Urban Renewal Project for the Stone Ridge Development™ in the amount of $315,000



City Council Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025

($200, 000 from Road Use Tax and $115,000 from General Fund) putsuant to a Development
Agreement approved by the City Council in August of 2021 and ratifying the prior action of the
Council taken at that time. Flory advised that this internal debt is now something that the City
would be able to certify for TIF collection prior to December 1, 2025, Motion by Bell, seconded
by Peterson. Roll Call: Passed Unanimously,

Flory gave an update on the City’s upcoming REFP process for solid waste collection, City Clerk
position posting and hiring process, Phase 3 of the Sanitary Sewer Line Cleaning & Televising
Project, and the City Street Sealcoating Project (2025).

Mayor Visser gave an update on meetings that he had attended and the upcoming construction
work on US HWY 30 at 33™ Avenue. He also commented on the conclusion of FY 2025.

Motion was made by Petersen, seconded by Dursky, to approve the consent agenda, which
included:

- Bills & claims

- Atkins Community Club (d/b/a: Watermelon Days) Class “C” Retail Alcohol License
(LC) 5-day (August 6®- 101

- Resolution #2025-06-08 “Approving transfers between Funds for the 2025 Fiscal
Year Budget”.

- Resolution #2025-06-09 “Amending Resolution #2025-05-10 by amending Special
Events Application period for Watermelon Days from August 8-9, 2025 to August 6™
through August 10" for the Soccer Park Area, including Pavillion & restrooms”

- May financial reports (inc. revenue & expense reports, bank reconciliation, and
Treasurer’s Report)

- Minutes of June 10, 2025 regular City Council meeting

Passed Unanimously.

LIST OF BILLS 06,24.25
VENDOR REFERENCE AMOUNT
|OWA STATE UNIVERSITY IMPI SUMMER CLASSES-FLORY 250
ESG PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTA PAYROLL 683.25
TODD DAMON HSA 6/20/25 117.3
SCOTT FLORY HSA 6/20/25 125
MIKE RAMMELSBERG HSA 6/20/25 78.84
JARROD TOMILNSON HSA 6/20/25 78.84
ACCESS SYSTEMS NETWORK SUPPORT 1,162.60
ACCESS SYSTEMS LEASING EQUIPMENT LEASES/COPIERS 1102.13
ACME TOOLS SUPPLIES 2,602.00
ALLIANT ENERGY UTILITY EXP 2758.92
ALTORFER INC. TROUBLESHOOT ALARM 254.93
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES 754.1
BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 139.62



BOUND TREE Medical, LLC
DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP
CHEM-SULT, INC.

CRAWFORD QUARRY

DEMCO

DINGES FIRE COMPANY
ECICOG

ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT SOLU
ESG PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTA
EVERGREEN LANDSCAPE NURSY
FUTURE LINE TRUCK EQUIPMT
GAHRING MACHINE INC.
GARLING CONSTRUCTION INC
GRAINGER

HI - VIZ SAFETY

ION ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIO
[OWA LEAGUE OF CITIES

JETCO, INC.

LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.

MENARD'S

METER & TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY
PUBLIC SAFETY SOLUTIONS
QUILL

SCOTT FLORY

SIMPLY GREEN, LLC.
SOLUM LANG ARCHITECTS
STATE AUDITOR OF IOWA
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS
STONE RIDGE DEVELOPING
TERI WATKINS

TODD DAMON

ULINE

WELLMARK BC/BS OF IOWA

Accounts Payable Total
Involces: Paid

Invoices: Scheduled

Payroll Checks

wHkkkk REPORT TOTAL ***#**

NO FUND ASSIGNED
GENERAL

ROAD USETAX

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

City Council Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025

FD SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

CHEMICALS

ROCKS

SUPPLIES

FD SUPPLIES

ADMIN FS

DO SENSOR

MAY 25 CONSULTING
WOOD CHIPS

ROADS PARTS

EQUIP REPAIR

PAY APP #5 FIRE STATION
PARKS SUPPLIES

SIGNS

LABS

MEMBER DUES 7/1/25-6/30/26
WWTP

SUPPLIES

WATER METERS

UTILITY EXP

RADIO & CONNECTOR
SUPPLIES

MILEAGE REIMB

WEED CONTROL

FIRE STATION REBUILD
FY24 AUDIT PERFORMED
WWTP SUPPLIES

TIF REBATE REIMB JUNE 2025
EXP REIMB

SAFETY SHOES

PARKS SUPPLIES

JULY PREMIUM

513.05
227.3
17,487.00
531.04
484.67
2,154.00
375

740

2301

210
792.33
1,684.93
298,917.50
96.1
970.5
1130
1,726.00
2,568.75
1,184.00
165.5
1,974.68
189.31
2,929.00
315.26
133

750
2,066.00
22,417.80
1,321.64
69,166.00
30.05
208.64
135.85
2652.99

448,656.42
1,333.23
447,323.19

448,656.42

43,364.75
2,374.84
69,166.00



FIRE STATION (incl FEMA)
WATER

SEWER

TOTAL FUNDS

FOR THE MONTH ENDING MAY 31, 2025
FUND REVENUES RECEIVED - TREASURER'S REPORT

Received

001 GENERAL 57,408.02
110 ROAD USE TAX 23,148.91
112 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,701.31
121 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 18,364.97
125 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 21,034.96
200 DEBT SERVICE 6,267.64
310 FIRE STATION (incl FEMA) 226,899.23
330 FED. AMERICAN RELEIF -
340 CDBG - DR HOUSING GRANT 74,939.97
600 WATER 41,963.35
610 SEWER 64,735.02

TOTAL 536,463.38

City Council Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025

301,358.50
25,844.63
6,547.70
448,656.42

There being no further business to come before the Council, Fisher moved, Dursky seconded, to

adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Roll Call: Passed Unanimously.

o L

Scott Flory, City Administfator

Bruce Visser, Mayor



' ALCOHOLIC
L\\ o State of lowa
Sata ot lps Alcoholic Beverages Division

Applicant
ST TR TN
NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA) BUSINESS
CLOUD WINE, LLC Lucky Wife Wine Slushies (515) 368-0295
ADDRESS OF PREMISES PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY COUNTY ZIP
402 Main Avenue Atkins Benton 52206
MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
1961 150th Street Humboldt lowa 50548
Contact Person
NAME PHONE EMAIL
Dawn Thompson (515) 368-0295 luckywifewineslushies4 @ gmail.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE
Special Class C Retail Alcohol
License

EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE

SUB-PERMITS

Special Class C Retail Alcohol License

PRIVILEGES

Status of Business

TERM STATUS

5 Day Submitted
to Local
Authority

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS



ALCOHCLIC
BEVERAGES
DIVISION

State of lowa

BUSINESS TYPE

Limited Liability Company

Ownership

 Individual Owners

State of lowa

Alcoholic Beverages Division

Dawn Thompson

NAME CITY

Humboldt

STATE | ZIP POSITION

lowa 50548 @ owner/ceo

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Founders Insurance Company

DRAM CANCEL DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Aug 6, 2025

QUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

% OF OWNERSHIP U.S. CITIZEN

100.00 Yes

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Aug 11, 2025

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGES
DIVISION
State of lowa

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

Bobby T's, Inc.

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

96 Main Ave.

MAILING ADDRESS

4845 Midway Dr NW

Contact Person

NAME

Robert

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER

LC0042870

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Sep 1, 2024

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Retail Alcohol License

PRIVILEGES

State of lowa

Alcoholic Beverages Division

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

Bobby T's Bar & Girill

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER

CITY

Cedar Rapids

PHONE

(319) 396-6996

LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Retail Alcohol License

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Aug 31, 2025

TERM

12 Month

BUSINESS

(319) 396-3434

CITY COUNTY ZIP
Atkins Benton 52206
STATE ZIP
lowa 52405
EMAIL

tisch1864 @hotmail.com

STATUS

Active

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS



ALCOROLIC
BEVERAGES
DIVISIOHN

State of lowa

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Corporation

Ownership

e Individual Owners

State of lowa

Alcoholic Beverages Division

NAME CITY

Robert Tischer

Cedar Rapids  lowa

STATE | ZIP POSITION

52405 @ Owner

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

lllinois Casualty Co

DRAM CANCEL DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Sep 1, 2024

OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

% OF OWNERSHIP | U.S. CITIZEN

100.00 Yes

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Sep 1, 2025

QOUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



